
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, June 28, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  
   Approval of Minutes 

 June 21, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  
      

Animal 
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 

Auditor 
b. Letter to State Auditor re 2015 Financial Statements  

c. Surplus of Personal Property  

Clerk 
d. Fund Expenditures from Trial Court Improvement Fund 

Facilities 
e. 3rd Amended Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc for Tenant Improvement Project for 

Prosecuting Attorney’s Office & Office of Public Defense  

f. Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc for Design & Engineering of WSU Extension Office 

g. Purchase of Bench Seating from Keeney’s Office Supply 

Fairgrounds 
h. Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc for Installation of Electrical Pedestals   

Human Services 
i. 1st Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Housing & 

Essential Needs Program 

j. 1st Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Ending 

Family Homelessness Program    

k. 2nd Amended Contract w/J Griffin dba Jet Computer Support for Programming Services 

l. 1st Amended Agreement w/DSHS for Developmental Disabilities Services    

Juvenile 
m. Contract w/A Campbell for Functional Family Therapy   

n. Contract w/A Campbell for Domestic Violence Family Counseling  

o. 2nd Amendment w/Apollo Heating & Air for Maintenance & Repairs  

p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 

q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 173 

Office of Public Defense 
r. Termination of Superior Court Indigent Defense Services w/J Chambers 

Personnel  
s. Agreement w/Public Safety Testing, Inc. for Corrections Corporal & Sergeant Testing  

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

June 28, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Public Safety 
t. Departmental Name Change to Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 122 

Public Works 
u. Purchase of Guardrail, Terminals & Cables from Coral Sales Company 

v. Contract w/Granite Construction Co. for Locust Grove Road Asphalt Repair Project 

Superior Court 
w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 

 
Scheduled Business 
 

Rural County Capital Funds Distribution ~ D Sparks 

 

Public Works- GPS Equipment ~ M Rasmussen 

 

Update on Engineering Building @ Prosser ~ F Bowen 

 

Candy Mountain Preservation ~ A Fyall 
 

GIS Update ~ M Phillips   
 

Unscheduled Visitors 
   Other Business   
 

 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight

weh
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen;   DPA Ryan Lukson; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; 

Marianne Ophardt, WSU – Benton County; Human Services Manager Kyle Sullivan; Clark Posey 

and RJ Lott, Planning; Yuliana Perez, Treasurer’s Office; Personnel Manager Lexi Wingfield; 

Public Services Administrator Fred Bowen; Taylor Ranger and Amanda Garcia, Auditor’s Office.   

 

Approval of Minutes 
 

The Minutes of June 14, 2016 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 
 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “m”.    

Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 
Auditor 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 102  

Human Services 
b. Grant Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Funding of 

Security & Alarm System  

c. 3rd Amended Agreement w/DSHS for Prevention Services  

d. 1st Amended Contract w/Inter-City Legal Processing & Messenger Service   

e. Agreement w/J Crow for Community Prevention Coordinator 

Juvenile 
f. 1st Amendment w/Aramark Correctional Services for Food Services 

Office of Public Defense 
g. Amending Interlocal Agreement w/City of Richland for Costs of Mental Health Court   

h. Amending Interlocal Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Costs of Mental Health Court   

Personnel 

i. Reappointment of R Knight to the Civil Service Commission Board   



 - 2 - 

j. Reappointment of A Taylor to the Civil Service Commission Board 

k. Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator Classification and Salary Grade    

Planning 
l. Reappointment of M Kaspar to the Planning Department Commission  

Public Works 
m. Authorizing the Transfer of Capital Equipment from ER&R to County Road    

 

Public Hearing - Short Plat Vacation – 2016-001 
 

RJ Lott summarized the short plat application submitted requesting the drainage easement be 

vacated off Lot 1 of Short Plat 3166.  KID replied and said the drainage easement might be needed 

for overflow to the irrigation pond; however, it was determined that pond was not near this 

easement.  Based upon the information received, the Planning Department recommended approval 

of the vacation of the drainage easement as presented. 

 

Chairman Small asked if someone spoke to KID and Mr. Lott said the applicants spoke to them 

and cleared that up.   

 

Public Testimony 

 

Hoyel Yang said his property was located downstream from this property and if changes were 

made, he wanted to know if his property would be vacated as well or would it remain in place.   

 

Mr. Lott said his property would remain in place and he would have to apply to vacate separately. 

 

As there was no one else present to testify, public testimony was closed. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the vacation of the 20-foot drainage 

easement on Lot 1 of Short Plat 3166 and subsequently Lot 4 of Short Plat 1802.  Commissioner 

Beaver seconded and upon on vote, the motion carried. 

 

Public Hearing – Supplemental Budget Adjustments 
 

Loretta Smith-Kelty presented the supplement in the amount of $100,000 for the Election Reserve 

Fund to support expenditures associated with the presidential primary election.  Mr. Sparks said 

the money was in the fund, it just needed the appropriation.   

 

Ae there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the budget adjustment to the 2015-2016 

Election Reserve Fund 0111-101 in the amount of $100,000.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and 

upon vote, the motion carried. 

 

Lexi Wingfield presented the supplement for the Workmen’s Compensation Fund in the amount 

of $1,165,000.  She said it was needed due to the increased costs in claims. 

 



 - 3 - 

She indicated that in the 2013-2014 budget there were 119 claims that averaged about $9,000 for 

a total of $1,121,000.  She said for the 2015-2016 budget there were 86 claims with an average 

cost of $13,000 (at $1,150,000 so far).  

 

Commissioner Delvin asked where the increases were coming from and Ms. Wingfield indicated 

Corrections had gone up and that Corrections and Juvenile were the biggest leaders.  She said that 

Patrol had gone up a little but the rest were down and Roads was half what it was from the prior 

budget.   She stated she talked to the Undersheriff about the increase from work crew claims.   

 

Commissioner Delvin inquired about bringing in a worksite safety person to review if changes 

could be made and Ms. Wingfield indicated she would look into that.   

 

There was a discussion about the claims stemming from violence in the jail and Commissioner 

Beaver said the severity of violence in the jail was not going away and he was not opposed to an 

industrial hygienist coming in to review the issue.   

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the budget adjustment to the 2015-2016 

Workmen’s Compensation Fund 0503-101 in the amount of $1,165,000.  Commissioner Beaver 

seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Byrne Justice Grant  
 

Cpt. Vannoy via/videoconference said the Sheriff’s office wanted to participate in 2016 Byrne 

Justice Assistance Grant to be distributed to KPD and Benton County as agreed upon by both 

parties.  He said they wanted to use the money to purchase a moving target “live fire” training 

system and handheld thermal imaging devices.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the 2016 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant 

(JAG) and authorize the Chairman to sign the Interlocal Agreement between the City of 

Kennewick and County of Benton in the amount of $9,373.00.  Commissioner Beaver seconded 

and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Justice Center Roof Replacement 
 

Fred Bowen requested the Board authorize him to proceed with advertising for bids from 

contractors for the re-roofing of the five buildings at the Justice Center.  He said this would give 

the County a 30-year no dollar limit warranty and his understanding was that no matter what 

happened, the warranty covered it.   The estimated cost was $3,990,000 with tax.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to authorize the Public Services Administrator to 

proceed with advertising for bids from qualified Contractors for re-roofing of the 5 (five) structures at 

the Justice Center Campus in Kennewick.  Commissioner Beaver seconded.   
 

  



 - 4 - 

Discussion 

 

Chairman Small asked if they had tried to patch and fix the roofs and Mr. Bowen indicated they 

had.   

 

Upon vote, the motion carried. 

 

Parking Lot – Kennewick Annex 
 

Fred Bowen discussed the south parking lot at the Kennewick Annex and the problems with the 

configuration.  He said by removing a portion of the center island and constructing a ramp leading 

back to the main entrance would allow traffic to circle through the parking lot and exit out, 

reducing traffic congestion.    Other improvements would be included as well and the estimated 

cost was $57,000.  He said the previous estimate was at $47,000 but the County Engineer indicated 

the seal coat was left off so they would rather include that now instead of doing a change order 

later.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the County Roads Department to move 

forward with advertisement for bids to construct the proposed modifications to the Kennewick 

Annex Parking lot.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried   

 

WSU Regional Livestock & Forages Update 
 

Don Llewellyn, Regional Livestock specialist, updated the Board on the following issues: 

 

 Beef cattle nutrition and reproduction, safety and feeding programs 

 Journals, articles, etc. that he authored 

 Presentations at national and state levels 

 Grants 

 Work w/Dept. of Animal Sciences at WSU 

 Team taught beef production  

 Work w/National Beef Quality Assurance Program 

 Programs and education and training for youth 

 

Steve Norberg, Regional Forage Specialist, updated the Board on the following: 

 

 Alfalfa Variety Trials and Impacts 

 Three main extension programs 

o Alfalfa variety trials 

o Forage nutrient management 

o Improved forage systems 

 20 Seed Cooperators 

 2015 NACCA National Finalist – crop production 

 2015 NACCA Western Region Research Poster winner 

 Timothy Nitrogen Research 

 Intercropping corn with soybeans 



 - 5 - 

 Growth of the NW Hay Expo 

 Convention – World Congress of Agriculture in China 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

 

Bill Hinkle said he represented a number of entities in government and was currently working with 

Hopesource to assist veterans.  Additionally, he discussed the accountable communities of health 

and applying for a federal grant that would work in concert with community health.  He said he 

wanted to introduce himself and looked forward to meeting individually with the Commissioners 

and to being a bridge organization to assist the County with its transition with Human Services 

and community health.   

 

Other Business 
 

Kyle Sullivan said they had a meeting with Franklin County to discuss Franklin County’s concern 

about the non-compete letter than was an exhibit to the contract with Rick Weaver.  He said 

originally it was supposed to be a small meeting but had morphed into something else and there 

were several people in attendance.   

 

He said the purpose of the meeting was to clean up language in the letter but that it was not 

ultimately addressed.  He said that Franklin County continued to have a problem with Rick Weaver 

completing the consultation due to the potential or perceived conflict of interest for completing 

services in the future. 

 

Mr. Sparks said he was at the meeting and Franklin County was adamant there was a conflict of 

interest, even though the contract stated it would not be a conflict.   

 

Chairman Small asked Mr. Sullivan to state what Mr. Weaver’s initial motive was to assist Benton 

and Franklin Counties.  Mr. Sullivan said that in 2020 there would be a lot of changes in health 

care and he wanted to be able to present to the MCO’s that there was a system that worked well in 

the hopes it would be something they would accept instead of telling them what the system should 

look like.   

 

The Board discussed GCBH completing an RFP for Crisis to get it settled and then filling the rest 

of the holes in the system.  Mr. Sullivan said that GCBH would be willing to move forward and 

make a decision on what happens with Crisis Response but they would prefer to take direction 

from the counties.   

 

Chairman Small reminded the Board that a lot of entities were on the committee that made the 

recommendation to move forward with Rick Weaver.   

 

Commissioner Beaver said he didn’t think that Crisis was broken but it was the partnership that 

was broken.  He said he shared the Board’s concern about the delay, but if Franklin County did 

not want to move forward, was Benton County going to do it alone. 

 



 - 6 - 

There was discussion regarding Franklin County wanting to hire the consultant from Texas but he 

was not available until the first week in August.  They did not know if Franklin County was 

drawing a line in the sand, but stated their concern was not wanting Comprehensive to exclude 

themselves from future services.  Ultimately, it was not their #1 option but they had not yet taken 

it off the table.   

 

The Board was reminded by the attorneys that Benton County had a bi-county contract for Crisis 

until June 30, 2017 and were locked into that and would not get funding for Crisis without a mutual 

termination of that agreement.   

 

Commissioner Small also asked whether there was a staffing problem at Crisis and Mr. Sullivan 

said they were doing the job and doing it well but staffing was a concern.  He was using a lot of 

overtime because they had holes but it was time to move forward.   

 

Ryan Brown, via/videoconference said he shared their frustration but wanted to reiterate the Board 

could not ignore its partnership and existing costs and just ask the RSN to contract it out because 

that money was obligated.  He said the Board needed to finish working with Franklin County to 

see if they had drawn a line with contracting with Rick Weaver and then state their position.  They 

could then work on terminating the contract and contract individually with the RSN to get Crisis.   

 

Chairman Small said he proposed that Benton County go ahead and contract with Rick Weaver to 

provide consultation and that the services and needs would be the same in Benton & Franklin 

Counties.  He said they could maybe then go to Bexar County in Texas and look at implementing 

their program.  However, the primary focus was to contract out Crisis and while they were doing 

that they could look at implementing additional needs and services that would benefit the 

community. 

 

The Board agreed to have another bi-county meeting to see if Franklin County would be willing 

to contract with Comprehensive and that it should be public record if it was no longer their position 

that they wanted to do that.    

 

Legal Financial Obligations 

 

Commissioner Delvin asked if they could have David Sparks and Loretta Smith Kelty do a 

presentation regarding the LFO’s and how it affected the budgets and the jail.  He also asked to 

have all the affected departments come in because he wanted a sense of what the effects of the 

LFO’s were on their budget prior to preparing for the next biennium.  If there was a reduction in 

funding, that should be addressed in the budgets.   

 
The Board recessed reconvening at 10:28 a.m.   

 
Executive Session – Potential Litigation 
 
The Board went into executive session at 10:28 a.m. for up to 10 minutes with DPA Ryan Lukson 

to discuss potential litigation.  Also present were Loretta Smith Kelty, David Sparks, and Cami 



 - 7 - 

McKenzie.  The Board came out at 10:37 a.m.  Mr. Lukson said the Board discussed potential 

litigation but took no action.   

 
Claim for Damages 
 

CC 2016-11: Received on June 23, 2016 from Carolina Dickerson 

 

Vouchers 
 

Check Date: 06/10/2016 

 

P-Cards #: 0616 

Total all funds: $246,746.46 

 

Check Date:  06/15/2016 

 

Payroll Draw Checks 

Warrant #: 239714-239716 

Direct Deposit #: 115094-115271 

Total all funds:  $105,603.13 

 

Payroll Draw Deductions Transfers 

Taxes #: 101160619 

Total all funds:  $34,831.86 

 

Check Date:  06/17/2016 

 

Warrant #:  140773-140892 

Total all funds:  $2,746.75 

 

Transfers #: 06171601-06171606 

Total all funds:  $45,392.98 

 

Warrant #: 140893-141082 

Total all funds:  $439,445.05 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 
 
2016-495: Interlocal Agreement Between City of Kennewick and Benton County for 2016 

Byrne Justice Assistance Grant - JAG 

2016-496: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 102  

2016-497: Grant Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Funding 

of Security & Alarm System  

2016-498: 3rd Amended Agreement w/DSHS for Prevention Services  



 - 8 - 

2016-499: 1st Amended Contract w/Inter-City Legal Processing & Messenger Service   

2016-500: Agreement w/J Crow for Community Prevention Coordinator 

2016-501: 1st Amendment w/Aramark Correctional Services for Food Services 

2016-502: Amending Interlocal Agreement w/City of Richland for Costs of Mental Health 

Court   

2016-503: Amending Interlocal Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Costs of Mental Health 

Court   

2016-504: Reappointment of R Knight to the Civil Service Commission Board   

2016-505: Reappointment of A Taylor to the Civil Service Commission Board 

2016-506: Establishing an Adult Drug Court Coordinator Classification and Salary Grade    

2016-507: Reappointment of M Kaspar to the Planning Department Commission  

2016-508: Authorizing the Transfer of Capital Equipment from ER&R to County Road    

2016-509: Short Plat Vacation 2016-001 ~ RJ Lott  

2016-510: Supplemental Budget Adjustment – 2015-2016 Election Reserve Fund  

2016-511: Supplemental Budget Adjustment – 2015-2016 Workmen’s Compensation Fund  

 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:37 

a.m. 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, Animal Control Department Prepared by: D. Wilson 

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 137

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners,

that funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Chairman of the Board

Member

weh
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

554.301. 1905 Temporary Help $18,996 554.301. 1181 Animal Control Officer I $18,996

554.301. 1150 Animal Control Officer II $2,200 554.301. 2104 Retirement $2,200

554.301. 1150 Animal Control Officer II $8,100 554.301. 2103 Medical Insurance $8,100

 

TOTAL $29,296 TOTAL $29,296

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Dale Wilson Date:  20-Jun-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

This request is based on the presention delivered on May 24, 2016 by Dale Wilson. 1) promote an Animal Control Officer I to an Animal Control Officer II

and 2) change Animal Control Officer III line item 1181 to reflect the name of Animal Control Officer I 3) move funds from a part-time position within the

temporary line to an Animal Control Officer I. 

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Animal Control 137

Current Expense 0000101



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  _06/28/2016_     

Subject: _Management 

Letter To State 

Auditor_  

Prepared by:       _Van Pettey__  

Reviewed by: _Ryan Brown, 

Brenda Chilton, 

Duane 

Davidson           

         

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  _____  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   __X___ 

 

Consent Agenda            
__X__  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Management letter to close out the Financial Audit of Benton County for 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY 

 
Management letter from Benton County to the State Auditor’s Office containing representations which affirm 
the County’s cooperation during the Financial Audit of Benton County’s 2015 operations. 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Pass on Consent Agenda & Sign 

 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION 
 

weh
Text Box
b. Letter to State Auditor re 2015 Financial Statements



 

 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     
  

 
 
June 28, 2016 
 
Ms. Deborah O’Leary, Assistant State Auditor 
Washington State Auditor’s Office 
100 N. Morain, Suite 216 
Kennewick, WA  99336 
 
Dear Ms. O'Leary: 
 
We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Benton 
County for the period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015.  Representations are in 
relation to matters existing during or subsequent to the audit period up to the date of this letter. 
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.  
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve a weakness, omission or 
misstatement of information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, make it probable that 
the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced 
by the weakness, omission or misstatement. 
 
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made appropriate inquiries to be able 
to provide our representations, the following representations made to you during your audit.  If 
we subsequently discover information that would change our representations related to this 
period, we will notify you in a timely manner. 
 
1. We acknowledge our responsibility for fair presentation of the financial statements and 

believe financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles in the United States of America. 

 
2. We acknowledge and understand our responsibility for compliance with requirements 

related to confidentiality of certain information, such as HIPAA requirements, and have 
notified you whenever records or data containing information subject to any 
confidentiality requirements were made available. 

 
3. We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and 

contracts and grant agreements. 
 

4. We have identified and disclosed all laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements 
that could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts, including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in 
separate funds. 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 



Ms. Deborah O’Leary, Assistant State Auditor 
June 28, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 
 
5. We have provided you with unrestricted access to people you wished to speak with and 

made available requested and relevant information of which we are aware, including: 
 

a. Financial records and related data. 
b. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Commissioners or summaries of actions 

of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 
c. Other internal or external audits, examinations, investigations or studies that 

might concern the objectives of the audit and the corrective action taken to 
address significant findings and recommendations. 

d. Communications from regulatory agencies, government representatives or others 
concerning possible material noncompliance, deficiencies in internal control or 
other matters that might concern the objectives of the audit. 

e. Related party relationships and transactions. 
f. Results of our internal assessment of business risks and risks related to financial 

reporting, compliance and fraud. 
 

6. All material transactions that have been properly recorded in the financial records. 
 

7. We believe there are no uncorrected misstatements that would be material individually 
and in the aggregate to each applicable opinion unit. 

 
8. We acknowledge our responsibility for establishing and maintaining effective internal 

controls over compliance with applicable laws and regulations and safeguarding of public 
resources, including controls to prevent and detect fraud. 

 
9. Except as reported to you in accordance with RCW 43.09.185, we have no knowledge of 

any fraud, allegations of fraud or suspected fraud involving management, employees, or 
others. 

 
10. The following have been properly classified, reported and disclosed in the financial 

statements, as applicable: 
 

a. Interfund, internal and intra-entity activity and balances. 
b. Related-party transactions, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing 

arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related 
parties. 

c. Joint ventures and other related organizations. 
d. Guarantees under which Benton County is contingently liable. 
e. All events occurring subsequent to the fiscal year end through the date of this 

letter that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial statements. 
 

11. All known actual or possible litigation, claims or assessments and other loss 
contingencies have been evaluated against the criteria of the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) of the United States of America and their effects have 
been properly classified, reported and disclosed in the financial statements, as applicable. 

 
 
 



Ms. Deborah O’Leary, Assistant State Auditor 
June 28, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 
12. We have complied with all material aspects of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 

agreements, except as disclosed by the attached letters. 
 
13. As disclosed by the attached, we have accurately disclosed to the auditor all known actual 

or possible pending or threatened litigation, claims or assessments whose effects should 
be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

 
14. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the reported value or 

classification of assets, liabilities or net position. 
 
15. The financial statements include financial information of the primary government and all 

component units, fiduciary and other activity required by generally accepted accounting 
principles to be included in the financial reporting entity. 

 
16. The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities. 

 
17. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB requirements or are otherwise 

particularly important to financial statement users, are presented as major funds. 
 

18. Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, 
reported and, depreciated as applicable. 

 
19. Revenues are appropriately classified by fund and account. 

 
20. Expenses have been appropriately classified by fund and account, and allocations have 

been made on a reasonable basis. 
 

21. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates are reasonable. 
 

22. Net position components (net investment in capital assets, restricted; and unrestricted) 
and fund balance components (nonspendable; restricted; committed; assigned and 
unassigned) are properly classified and, as applicable, approved. 

 
23. We acknowledge our responsibility for the Required Supplementary Information (RSI) 

required by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and believe RSI 
is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines.   

 
24. We acknowledge our responsibility for establishing and maintaining effective internal 

control over financial reporting. 
 
25. We have established adequate procedures and controls to safeguard public resources and 

ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 
 

26. We have disclosed to you all significant changes in the methods of measurement and 
presentation of RSI, reasons for any changes and all significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the RSI. 
 

27. We acknowledge our responsibility not to publish any document containing the audit 
report with any change in the financial statements, supplementary and other information 
referenced in the auditor’s report.  We will contact the auditor if we have any needs for 
publishing the audit report with different content included. 



Ms. Deborah O’Leary, Assistant State Auditor 
June 28, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 

28. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report combining statements and supplemental schedules in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United States.  We believe that the combining 
statements and supplemental schedules are fairly presented, including both form and 
content, in accordance with those principles. 

 

29. We have disclosed to you all significant changes to the methods of measurement and 
presentation of combining statements and supplemental schedules, reasons for any 
changes and all significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or 
presentation of the combining statements and supplemental schedules. 

 
 

 
 
 
              
          Shon Small           Brenda Chilton 
         Chairperson,     Benton County Auditor 
                Board of County Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
        
      Duane A. Davidson 
  Benton County Treasurer 
 
cc: Board of County Commissioners 
 Brenda Chilton, Benton County Auditor 
 Duane A. Davidson, Benton County Treasurer 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Letter dated June 28, 2016, to the Board of County Commissioners from Ryan 
Brown, Chief Civil Deputy:  RE:  Letter of Representation and Pending Litigation. 

 
2. Letter dated June 28, 2016, to the Board of County Commissioners from Lexi 

Wingfield, Personnel Manager  RE:  Letter of Representation and Claims Update.  



A. Coverdell 

 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 

As outlined in Resolution 07-752, the Public Works department requests supply items be 

declared surplus and be disposed of. 

 

 

SUMMARY  

The Personal Property Manager has determined that the personal property on the attached 

exhibit can be declared surplus and disposed of accordingly.  

 
  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         

Meeting Date: June 28, 2016 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda x    

Subject: 

Declaration of Surplus 

Property  Pass Resolution  x   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance      1st Discussion     

By: A. Coverdell Pass Motion      2nd Discussion     

Reviewed By: V. Pettey / B. Chilton Other      Other      

                    

weh
Text Box
c. Surplus of Personal Property



A. Coverdell 

RESOLUTION 
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY POLICY, RE: SURPLUS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH RESOLUTION 07-752 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Auditor is the Personal Property Manager and maintains an updated 
inventory listing of County Personal Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works department has identified supply items which have become obsolete; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and the Public Works 
department that the listed property be declared surplus; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton County to surplus 
antiquated and obsolete property; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that based on the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager and as 
supported by the Public Works department, the listed property in Attachment A is hereby determined 
to be surplus and will be held for online auction, the next surplus sale, disposed of as waste, or recycled 
depending on final condition assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this _________day of _____________________, 2016. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
      Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member  

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners of 
Benton County, Washington  

 
Attest: ___________________________ 

Clerk of the Board    
 

  
  



A. Coverdell 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
Used 8 inch pvc pipe, approximately 450 feet 
2 chain link gates 14.5’  
10 rolls of chain link fence, approx. 100 feet -used 
4” pvc pipe 400’ -new 
2  used street light poles 30’ long 
culvert end sections and culvert bands various sizes from 18” to 42” 
various pieces of pvc pipe 
 



weh
Text Box
d. Fund Expenditures from Trial Court Improvement Fund







RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES CONTRACT WITH MEIER ENTERPRISES, INC FOR THE OFFICE 
OF PUBLIC DEFENSE AND P ROSECUTING ATTORNEY TENANT 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT LOCATED AT THE BENTON COUNTY JUSTICE 
CENTER 
 
WHEREAS, per resolution 2015-607 dated August 25, 2015 the Board of Benton 
County Commissioners entered into a contract with Meier Enterprises, Inc. to provide 
architectural and engineering services for the OPD and PA Office renovation; and  
 
WHEREAS, per resolution 2015-710 dated October 6, 2015 the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners approved the first amendment with Meier Enterprises, Inc. that expanded 
the scope of work to include expanded OPD renovation, new executive conference room, 
and a spatial analysis for entire PA Office; and 
 
WHEREAS, per resolution 2016-423 dated May 24, 2016 the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners approved the second amendment with Meier Enterprises, Inc. that 
extended the expiration date from May 31, 2016 to December 31, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, this third amendment is necessary to expand the scope of work, increase the 
compensation amount, and extend duration of contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the attached amendment expands to scope of work to include Mental 
Health Court/Administration/IT Department renovations, increasing the compensation 
from $80,000.00 to $170,800.00, and extends the expiration date from December 31, 
2016 to December 31, 2017; and 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby concurs with 
the attached third amendment to professional services contract, to update the scope of 
work, increase the compensation amount up to $170,800.00 including W.S.S.T., and 
extends the expiration date to December 31, 2017; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby 
authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign the third amendment to professional 
services contract attached hereto. 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 2016.   

 
       

Chairman of the Board  
 

       
Chairman Pro-Tem 

 
            ___ 

Member 
 

       Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 
 Clerk of the Board        
 

 
 
Orig.: File – Facilities  P. Schut  
cc: Auditors; S.Araiza; Meier Enterprises, Inc.  
 

weh
Text Box
e. 3rd Amended Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc for Tenant Improvement Project for Prosecuting Attorney’s Office & Office of Public Defense























RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN MATTER OF AWARDING ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES TO 
MEIER ENTERPRISES, INC. FOR THE DESIGN AND ENGINEERING OF THE WSU 
EXTENSION OFFICE RENOVATION AT HEALTH DEPARTMENT BUILDING 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined by the Public Services Administrator that in order to accommodate 
the move of the Assessor’s Office to the Kennewick Annex, WSU will have to be relocated to the Health 
Department Building, and small office renovation needs be completed before hand; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Services Administrator, Construction Manager, and Facilities Manager 
recommend entering into a contract with Meier Enterprises, Inc. for the design and engineering of the 
WSU Extension Office Renovation; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby concurs with the 
recommendation and awards the attached Professional Services Contract with Meier Enterprises, Inc. to 
provide architectural and engineering services for the WSU Extension Office Renovation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
Professional Services Contract with Meier Enterprises Inc. in an amount not to exceed $28,000.00 
including WSST; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said contract shall begin immediately upon execution by both 
parties and expires on June 30, 2017, 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro Tem  
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of  Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 

weh
Text Box
f. Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc for Design & Engineering of WSU Extension Office

























































weh
Text Box
g. Purchase of Bench Seating from Keeney’s Office Supply































 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date 06/20/16 

Subject:         Sierra Electric  

Prepared by:   J. Donley  

Reviewed by:  P. Schut 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X__ 

Pass Resolution  __X__  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   _____ 

 

 
Consent Agenda            __X__  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  
   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

The Benton County Fairgrounds applied for and was granted a Washington State Dept. of 
Agriculture Improvement grant in the amount of $15,000.00 for the installation of electrical panels at 
the new camping facility. Agreement K1846 was approved by the Board of County Commissioners 
per Resolution 2016-120.  Bids were solicited and received from the following: 
 

• Sierra Electric, Inc. – Pasco, WA. - $40,996.50  
• Brashear Electric, Inc. - Richland, WA. - $43,141.35 
• Magnum Electric Services, Inc. – Richland, WA. - $62,941.30  

 
Proposals were reviewed and the recommendation is to move forward with a contract for said 
services with Sierra Electric, Inc. as the lowest bidder.   

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the attached Resolution and Contract between Benton County and Sierra Electric, Inc. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Not to exceed $40,996.50 including W.S.S.T. To be paid from Fairgrounds Operating Budget 0124-
101 
 

MOTION 
 
Move to approve the attached contract between Benton County and Sierra Electric, Inc.                     
 

weh
Text Box
h. Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc for Installation of Electrical Pedestals



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF A CO NTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND SIERRA 
ELECTRIC, INC., FOR THE INSTALLATION OF ELECTRICAL PEDESTALS AT THE 
BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS NEW CAMPING AREA 

WHEREAS, Per Resolution 2016-120, the Board of County Commissioners approved interagency 
agreement K1846 from the State of Washington Department of Agriculture awarding a grant to the 
Benton County Fairgrounds in the amount of $15,000.00 for the installation of electrical pedestals at 
the new camping area; and 

WHEREAS, proposals were solicited and received from the following contractors: 
• Sierra Electric, Inc. – Pasco, WA. - $40,996.50
• Brashear Electric, Inc. - Richland, WA. - $43,141.35
• Magnum Electric Services, Inc. – Richland, WA. - $62,941.30

And; 

WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds Office Manager reviewed the quotes and recommends 
awarding the installation of electrical pedestals at the Benton County Fairgrounds new camping area 
to Sierra Electric, Inc. as the lowest bidder for an amount not to exceed $40,996.50 including 
W.S.S.T. NOW, THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
hereby agrees with the recommendation and awards the installation of electrical pedestals at the 
Benton County Fairgrounds new camping area to Sierra Electric, Inc., for a contract amount not to 
exceed $40,996.50 including W.S.S.T; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the contract shall begin upon execution by both parties and 
expire on May 31, 2017; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the agreement 
attached hereto.  

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . . 

Chairman of the Board 

Chairman Pro-Tem 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Commissioners of Benton County, 

Clerk of the Board Washington 

Orig: Commissioners  J. Donley 
cc: Auditor; S. Araiza; Contract Management; F. Bowen; Sierra Electric, Inc.  













































weh
Text Box
i. 1st Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Housing & Essential Needs Program









































































































































weh
Text Box
j. 1st Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Ending Family Homelessness Program



























































































































weh
Text Box
k. 2nd Amended Contract w/J Griffin dba Jet Computer Support for Programming Services









weh
Text Box
l. 1st Amended Agreement w/DSHS for Developmental Disabilities Services











weh
Text Box
m. Contract w/A Campbell for Functional Family Therapy



























































weh
Text Box
n. Contract w/A Campbell for Domestic Violence Family Counseling





































weh
Text Box
o. 2nd Amendment w/Apollo Heating & Air for Maintenance & Repairs





















Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

OPERATIONS FUND NUMBER 0115101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 171

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

weh
Text Box
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

527.100 1624 Detention Officer $38,000 527.100 1925 Overtime $38,000

527.100

TOTAL $38,000 TOTAL $38,000

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  14-Jun-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Line item transfer necessary transfering dollars from vacant full time line items to cover necessary overtime associated with unfilled positions.

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Juvenile Center 171

Operations 0115101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CONTRACT - FEE FOR SERVICE FUND NUMBER 0115101, DEPARTMENT

NUMBER 173

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

weh
Text Box
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 173



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

527.400 1905 Temporary Help $1,000 527.400 1925 Overtime $1,000

TOTAL $1,000 TOTAL $1,000

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  14-Jun-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Line item transfer necessary transfering dollars from vacant full time line items to cover necessary overtime associated with unfilled positions.

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Juvenile Center 173

Contract - Fee for Service 0115101



weh
Text Box
r. Termination of Superior Court Indigent Defense Services w/J Chambers





weh
Text Box
s. Agreement w/Public Safety Testing, Inc. for Corrections Corporal & Sergeant Testing















cc:   Auditor, Sheriff, Prosecuting Attorney, METRO, Commissioners SmithKelty 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 2016. 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY BUDGETS RE:  DEPARTMENTAL NAME CHANGE TO THE 
PUBLIC SAFETY TAX FUND NO. 0148-101, DEPARTMENT 122 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on Tuesday, April 12, 2016, in which the Financial Analyst 
requested  a budget adjustment to the Public Safety Tax Budget, Fund No. 0148-101, Department 
122, in the amount of $146,294; and, 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolutions 2016-305 and 2016-355 the department title was listed as Sheriff 
Metro Drug Task Force; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Auditor’s Office brought to the Deputy County Administrator’s attention that 
Benton County’s financial reporting system, EDEN, was showing the department title listed as 
Contract Housing; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Deputy Administrator recommends the department title be changed to Metro 
Drug Task Force as in later 2016 budget adjustments and during the 2017-2018 biennium budget 
process other offices besides the Sheriff’s may charge within the Public Safety Tax Budget, Fund 
No. 0148-101, Department 122; NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED , the Board of County Commissioners approves the Deputy County 
Administrator’s recommendation to change the department title to Metro Drug Task Force related 
to the Public Safety Tax Budget, Fund No. 0148-101, Department 122; and, 
 
BE IT F URTHER RESOLVED the Board of County Commissioners request the Auditor’s 
Office to change the department title to Metro Drug Task Force related to the Public Safety Tax 
Budget, Fund No. 0148-101, Department 122 within Benton County’s financial reporting system, 
EDEN. 

weh
Text Box
t. Departmental Name Change to Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 122



weh
Text Box
u. Purchase of Guardrail, Terminals & Cables from Coral Sales Company







































































































































weh
Text Box
v. Contract w/Granite Construction Co. for Locust Grove Road Asphalt Repair Project



















































































































weh
Text Box
w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138







weh
Text Box
Rural County Capital Funds Distribution ~ D Sparks





weh
Text Box
Public Works- GPS Equipment ~ M Rasmussen







































 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  June 28, 2016   

    

Subject: Old Engineers 

Bldg.  

 

Prepared by:      Fred Bowen        

    

Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  _____ 

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  __x__  

Other   _____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda            _____  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            __x__ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
March 15, 2016 the Board approved a contract with CKJT Architects to perform a Feasibility Study to determine the 
Structural Condition of the Old Engineering Building located behind the Courthouse in Prosser. 

 

SUMMARY 
 

Structural Condition Assessment  
Report indicated the building structure appears to be in good overall condition and did not see any indication that would 
prevent the building from being safely occupied.  
 

Hazardous Materials Report 
This survey was limited to the sampled materials. 
Asbestos-containing materials, Lead-containing paint, PCB’s- All fluorescent light fixtures & Mercury Light Tubes were 
identified throughout the building. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Board of County Commissioner approve the Public Services Administrator to seek bids from qualified Contractors 
and Air Monitoring Consultants for the removal of all Hazardous Materials for continued evaluation of the building.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Estimated Costs  Hazardous Material Abatement    $39,000 
   Air Monitoring Fees       7,000  
        $46,000  
    

MOTION 
 
Move to approve the Public Services Administrator to seek bids from qualified Contractors and Air Monitoring 
Consultants for the removal of all Hazardous Materials for continued evaluation of the building.  

 

weh
Text Box
Update on Engineering Building @ Prosser ~ F Bowen



weh
Text Box
Candy Mountain Preservation ~ A Fyall







Department 
Update

weh
Text Box
GIS Update ~ M Phillips



Breakdown of Services
0

20
00

40
00

60
00

80
00

10
00
0

12
00
0

14
00
0

16
00
0

Maps for Public Maps for County CDs/DVDs Files Emailed Files to Remote
Device

Services to
County/Agencies

Estimated Online
Downloads

Images
Registered

D
el
iv
er
ab

le
 C
ou

nt

Deliverable Type

GIS Deliverables

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016 (to
June 12)



0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

GIS Main Fee Schedule Links Place Order Products and Services Maps, Data, Online
Mapping

GIS Webpage Views

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 (to June 15)



Featured Project
Road Department Custom Interactive Web Map

• Features listed according to Road Department specifications
• Available for internal department use only
• Accessible from anywhere with internet access
• Viewable as desktop or mobile version 



Featured Project
Planning Department
Comprehensive Plan
Map Update and Atlas

• Created using existing Road Atlas 
Template

• Updated styles
• Consistent design/format
• Smaller areas allow for more detail
• Road index and address ranges 

facilitate property identification




	CA - Facilities e.pdf
	Meier Amendment Resolution.pdf
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County



	CA - Facilities f.pdf
	Resolution 6-28-16..pdf
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County



	CA - Fairgrounds h.pdf
	Agenda action sheet Sierra.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION

	Contract Resolution Sierra Electric Inc.pdf
	IN THE MATTER OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND SIERRA ELECTRIC, INC., FOR THE INSTALLATION OF ELECTRICAL PEDESTALS AT THE BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS NEW CAMPING AREA
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County



	Timed - 3 Engineer Blg Update.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION




